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JOHN W, HODGES HOUSE

Leitch's Wharf 1883, 1905, and 1930's
Private

John W. Hodges, a steamboat man,bought this
property from the Leitches Wharf in 1883,

He built the first of three sections

of this L-shaped frame house., This part,
facing the Patuxent River, stands a true

13 stories high. Like the other two sectioms,
it measures one room deep by three bays long.
In 1905 Hodges built a two-story side-hall,
single parlor addition to the south. At

some time a separate summer kitchen was built.
It is said that John Hodges died on an ice-
bound steamer on his way home.

John's son William E. Hodges, a waterman
and carpenter, inherited the house. In about
1940, he added a 1% story section running
east of the original building. During a snow-
storm in the 1960's William insisted on re-
turning home from his daughter's house in
Prince Frederick. He was found dead in the
snow on the river bank,
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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

Accordin_ to Mrs. EZthel Hodges Cox, her father, William E. Hodges,
was borrn here in 1885 SS5/500 shows that his father, John W. Hodges bought
one acre on this spot on April 4,1883. Equity Case #92 contains a map
showing this location as "Hodges Lot" in 1886. Although.there is no
indication of the presence of a structure, Mrs. Cox's clain thct her
father was born here in 1885 suggests the existence of g house. Mrs.

May Warfield, a relative who is around 85 years old, says that the Hodges
built soon after buying the lot and that all of the children were born in
the house,

The present structure has three distinct sections to it, each appearing
to be somewhat older than the next. The wing containing the north parlor
would appear to be the oldest portion of the house, the souti parlor is
the next oldest and the kitchen wing, according to lirs. Cax, was built by
her father in the Late 1930's or Early 1940's." The end result of these
additions is a two story nouse with somewhat of an L-plan containing an
entrance hall flanked by parlors.

Although all of the materials in the house are modern (Late 19th
Century or later), there are differences enough in each section to lead
one to tnink that the first house on the site was a 1% story frame structure.
It was most likely John W, Hodges' house. The plan provided for one room
downstairs and one upstairs which may have been partitioned off into two
little bedrooms. (See Attachment 4.)

John Hodges had three children, all born in the Late 1880%s, and a
house this size was probably at one point not large enough. According
to kirs. Warfield, the hall and south parlor were added around 1905. This
was a two story addition providing two rore bedrooms.

After marrying and having his own family, William E. Hodges returned
to this house in the 1930C's, and it was then that the two story kitchen
wing was added. William Hodges w.s a watocrman and a carpenter who did his

own work including the built-in kitchen cupboards. According to lrs.
Cox prior to this addition, there was a detzched "summer" kitchen located
a short distance off of the northeast corner of Part #1.

Exterior:

The 13 story north wing has been covered with asbestos shingles which
cover simple clapboard sidi:g. The roof is gable-end. The north end is
windowless and contains an interior flu chimney. The west side faces the
river and is three bays wide. A central entrance is flanked by two 6/6
windows on either side. This same facade contains two 3/3 windows (Knee
high) in the upper story. The south wing hides the south wall; the kitchen
wing hides the east side.

CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY
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This is an 1880's, 1%
wz8 the riverside dwelling

CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY

story cottage with Early 20th Century additions. This
of a steamship worker and his son who was a fisherman.
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Being a full two slories, the south wing is higher than Section #1. It
is one bay in depth, three bavs in width, and also has a gzble end roof,
In essence, it is a side-hall plan with a single parlor. It provided a
second and more central entromce on the west side., It wlso has a clapboard
exterior now covered with asbestos. The south end is dowless and contoins
an interior flu chimiey. The east facade repeats the aspearance oif the
west facade., Vindows in both stories are 2/2.

The kitchen wing has the same siding as the other wings, guble end
roof, and a windowless east facade containinz an interior fiu chimmey,
This wing, however, matches the smaller north wing in height and has one
recessed dormer in the north and south sides. The first floor on these
gides contains a central door flanked by windows; the north side has a
gmell porch and pantry.

A distressing note concerning the cxterior is that the west or front
side of the house used to have a year enclosed by a sicket femce, two rows
of large trees invetwsen 1ty and the steep backs wilch lead down to the
river, A drivewsy, in fact, w:s between the fence and bank edge. Erosion,
however, hasg resulted in the loss of this vard, some 75 fezt of land
according to Mrs. Cox.

Interior:

The interior of both sections was finished wi.th simple bulis-eye corner
blocks and mouldings around doors and windows. 8Beveral of the doors either
have glass door knobs, a few are fancier brass knobs of an oval shape

decorated with beads ete. common to the Late Viectorian Zra. But-ninges with

s

embosced floral patierns and pivots with vendants cre on many of the doors.

3 "erand" stoirs, occupying much
of the hall and possessing a bennister and newal. The stairs in Part i1 are
boxed-in steps occunying the southeast corner. Cut nails were observed in
these steps.

The stairway in Part #2 is nuch more of a

An additioneal bit of family history relevant to this site is that both
John W, Hodges :nd his only son Williem L. derived their living from the
river. John W. Hodges worked on the steamboats which used to stop .at
the many wharfs on the Patuxent River. The land on which he built his house
was once owned by the Leitch'sadf Leitchs Whar? (885/500). It is said that
John Hodges died on a stesmer which was lce hound and unable to get hinm home
in time.

His son William was a fisherman who laid nets in the Patuxent, He was
born in this house on the banks of that river, and in old :ge chose to live
alone there rather than lesve, During a snow storm in 196 , he was staying
with his daughter in Prince Froaderick. In spite of the snow, he became qulte
anxious and insisted on returning to his house. He did so, and ten days latexr
wags found dead of natural causes lying in the snow zbout half way down the steep
river bank,

Bothh father and son lived, worked, and died ou the river.
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John W. Hodz2s House, Leitchs Hoad

This is an 1350's, 1% story cotiage wita Barly 23th Century additions. This
was the riveraide dwelling of a steanship worker znd nis son who was a fisherman,
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